
 MINUTES 
October 11, 2016 

Committee of the Whole 
City of Batavia 

 
Please NOTE: These minutes are not a word-for-word transcription of the statements made at the 
meeting, nor intended to be a comprehensive review of all discussions. They are intended to make an 
official record of the actions taken by the Committee/City Council, and to include some description of 
discussion points as understood by the minute-taker. They may not reference some of the individual 
attendee’s comments, nor the complete comments if referenced. 
 
Chair Brown called the meeting to order at 7:30pm. 

 
1. Roll Call 
 
Members Present: Chair Brown; Ald. Russotto, Atac, Stark, Chanzit, O’Brien, Callahan, 

Hohmann, Mueller, Botterman, Cerone, and McFadden 
 
Members Absent: Alderman Wolff 
 
Also Present: Mayor Schielke (entered at 7:34pm); Chief Schira, Batavia Police 

Department; Laura Newman, City Administrator; Scott Haines, 
Street Superintendent; and Jennifer Austin-Smith, Recording 
Secretary  

 
2. Approve Minutes for August 30, September 13, September 20 and September 27, 2016 
 
Motion: To approve minutes for August 30, September 13, September 20, and September 

27, 2016 
Maker: Chanzit 
Second: Stark 
Voice Vote: 12 Ayes, 0 Nays, 1 Absent 
   Motion carried. 
 
3. Items to be Removed/Added/Changed 
There were no items to be removed, added or changed.  
 
4. Matters From the Public (For Items NOT on Agenda) 
There were no matters from the public for items not on the agenda.  
 
5. Ordinance 16-62: Creating Class J Liquor License for Sale and Consumption of 

Liquor in Movie Theaters (Chief Schira 10/4/16) 
Chief Schira reported that Goodrich Theaters would like to pursue liquor licenses for movie 
theaters. They have rolled out liquor in their Oswego theaters. Goodrich Theaters wants to be 
competitive but also wants to maintain the family atmosphere in the theaters. Chief Schira 
explained that in order to consume alcohol you must purchase a movie ticket. They will have 
tamper proof wrist bans that are unique for every day. There is a limitation of one drink per visit 
to the liquor stand. Alcohol could be consumed where it was purchased, in the lobby or in the 
theater. No one is allowed to carry out liquor. Liquor could be served one hour before the first 
movie starts and one hour after the last movie ends. Liquor would not be served if there were 



Committee of the Whole  
October 11, 2016 
Page 2 
 
only PG and G movies being shown before 8pm. Mayor Schielke noted that beyond the liquor, 
Goodrich Theaters plan on adding a food element such as salads and sandwiches to offer as a 
meal selection.  
 
Chanzit noted that there are issues currently in the parking lot. He stated that there currently is 
drag racing and drinking and he is concerned about the policing of the parking lot. Stark 
expressed concern with underage workers having to tell adults not to walk out of the theater with 
a drink. She stated that she would not support this license because she does not like the whole 
concept. Chief Schira stated that if there were any abuse found, the Goodrich Theater would be 
reprimanded with a liquor violation. Atac stated that she understands the theater’s interest in 
diversifying their menu. Callahan stated that in Florida all of the theaters have liquor offered. He 
asserted that the trained over twenty-one employees would be the ones responsible for handling 
any liquor issues, such as someone trying to leave with a beverage. Cerone and McFadden 
shared their support for it.  
 
Motion: To recommend to Council approval of Ordinance 16-62: Creating Class J Liquor 

License for Sale and Consumption of Liquor in Movie Theaters  
Maker: McFadden 
Second: Cerone 
Voice Vote: 10 Ayes, 2 Nays, 1 Absent 
   Motion carried. 
 
Aldermen Stark and Chanzit were the nay votes.  
 
6. Discussion: Overnight Parking Ban GS 
Callahan stated that he is in support of maintaining the overnight parking ban but defining the 
undefined sections. He explained that we need to clearly define some of the ambiguity, such as 
the three days allowance for parking overnight. Atac stated that safety and aesthetics should be 
considered. She is concerned that lifting the parking ban would create more cars in the street. 
Stark questioned if this is a convenience factor or an overflow factor. She stated that the ban has 
always worked because it was all or nothing. Hohmann suggested a hotline or text number that 
downtown bars could call to have a patron leave their car overnight without getting a ticket. 
 
Chief Schira stated that the police department is willing to do what the Council directs them. He 
suggested that the overnight parking ban from 1am-6am is quite long and suggested reducing it 
to 2am-5am. The consensus of the Committee was in favor of changing the hours. Scott Haines 
stated that there would be 35 to 40 signs to change. He does not think that the change of hours 
would effect his operations.  
 
Chanzit stated he would be in favor of leaving the ban in place and codifying the practices that 
are currently in place that are not defined. Callahan suggested extended parking for six months at 
a time. He explained that Oak Park now issues extended parking to their residents. McFadden 
stated that he would support what Chanzit has suggested. He gave an example of a resident that 
has a short driveway who has trouble with cars hanging over the sidewalk and receiving tickets. 
This family has been calling the police department every three days to ensure that they do not 
receive tickets. McFadden stated that to be able to provide relief for certain circumstances would 



Committee of the Whole  
October 11, 2016 
Page 3 
 
be good. Stark stated that we do need to consider which would you rather have, someone parked 
over the sidewalk or parked in the street. Mayor Schielke commented that he has heard from 
residents who are concerned with neighbor rights. Some do not want their neighbors parked on 
the street due to maneuverability concerns. Mayor Schielke continued that there is concern with 
street parking and snow removal. 
 
Haines stated that services the City provides would be affected by overnight parking. He 
explained that overnight parking would affect street sweeping and flooding is a potential. Refuse 
collection and snow removal would also be affected. Enforcement of how long vehicles are 
going to be there is a necessity. Allowing for overnight parking would bring a whole host of 
issues and he asked the Committee to consider all the issues. O’Brien fully agreed with Haines’ 
comments. O’Brien stated that there are a lot of safety factors to consider and safety is the most 
important issue. O’Brien noted that he got a message from a retired police officer that asked the 
City not to remove the overnight parking ban due to safety concerns.  Botterman stated that he 
would not support a permit to have a car on the street unmoved for a six-month duration or any 
duration. Botterman stated that this discussion is to alleviate one set of problems but he sees this 
leading to a whole set of other problems. He does not want the police department using their time 
to enforce this. Cerone asked the Committee if there was a consensus that no one would like to 
lift the ban. There was no opposition to that statement.  
 
The Committee’s consensus was not to lift the overnight parking ban. Chanzit added the process 
should be codified within the code. Callahan and Chanzit asked staff to bring some options to 
tighten up the ambiguity. Chief Schira asked for the Committee to send him an email listing 
circumstances in which a permit would be justified. He would like the Committee to spell out the 
circumstances to make it clear as to what the Committee wants.  
 
Chief Schira suggested changing the ordinance so that the Chief of Police has the authority to 
grant permits versus going to the COW for permission. Callahan agreed and stated that if we 
spell out the conditions with officer discretion that would be acceptable. Chanzit agreed with 
removing the decision from the Council and allowing for the Chief’s discretion. Chief Schira 
added that the appeal authority should then go to the City Administrator. 
 
Chair Brown opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Eric Polmnair, 1195 Hanover Drive, stated that this is a good discussion but we are dealing with 
a very small percentage of residents and a majority does not have an issue. He agrees with what 
Botterman has stated, you are going to create more issues. He suggested limiting the amount of 
permits one person could have.  
 
Chief Schira suggested not allowing parking of any kind overnight on the streets from November 
1st until April 1st as per the street department has suggested. Chief Schira also suggested 
removing the term emergency. He explained that overnight parking is not an emergency. He 
stated that it is a predicament.   
 
 
 



Committee of the Whole  
October 11, 2016 
Page 4 
 
Summary of tasks to do: 

• COW to email Chief Schira with language and suggestions on which situations would 
justify a permit 

• Language should be added to codify processes already in place  
• Change the overnight parking hours from 1-6am to 2-5am. 

o Change signage 
• Chief of Police to have the authority to grant permits 

o Appeal authority with the City Administrator 
• Chief Schira would put something together and bring it back to the COW for review and 

editing 
 
7. Discussion: To Allow First Baptist Church Congregation the Right of First Refusal to 

the Organ Pipes in the First Baptist Church and to Offer them Next to any Batavia 
Religious Congregation before Offering them for Disposition to the General Public CD 

Mayor Schielke would like to start with the First Baptist Church that owns the building and then 
offer the organ pipes to the Batavia Ministerial Association. After that we could then make it 
available to the public. Mayor Schielke commented that the organ does not appear to work in its 
current condition. There was no objection from the Committee.  
 
Mayor Schielke stated that the First Baptist Church is in the process of having the stained glass 
windows taken out and then used in one of their facilities. Newman stated that anyone who 
works on the building would have to sign a waiver and release in order to do any work on the 
building or to take anything out.   
 
8. Project Status 
Newman reported that she would like to move forward in contracting with Sigma Performance 
Solutions. The event would be held on November 5th at the Lincoln Inn.  Communication 
assessments and discussion on strategic planning would be included in this meeting.  
 
Newman announced that the parking analysis and economic impact analysis would be placed on 
the City Website as well as the One Washington Place page, and Facebook. Newman gave a 
summary of the results (600ft surrounding the redevelopment site): 

• Demand at peak hours is 1,237 spaces, the current is 1,056 parking spaces, we currently 
have a deficit of 181 parking spaces 

• Post development the supply is expected to increase to 1,265 parking spaces, and the 
demand increase is 1,370, this would result in the deficit being decreased from 181 
spaces to 105 spaces 

• Building the project would not completely cure the deficit in our downtown area but it 
does decrease the deficit.  

• It would be advantageous to utilize the Larsen Becker property as temporary parking 
while the project is being built and hang on to it after the project is built so that we could 
better understand the increased need for parking in the area 

 



Committee of the Whole  
October 11, 2016 
Page 5 
 
Callahan asked if the deficit took into account the public parking proposed on the Larsen Becker 
property. Newman answered that it did not. Brown noted that the Octoberfest event had 
sufficient parking.  
 
Newman discussed the economic impact analysis for One Washington Place. She highlighted the 
following information: 

• The temporary economic impacts of the construction phase will be significant. About 400 
jobs will result form the project. Persons filling those jobs will earn nearly $23.4 million. 
Economic activity will increase by more than $67 million in Kane County. 

• A 2014 report examining housing stock in the Fox River Valley suggested that this type 
of housing would be in short supply in Batavia. Once complete, residential tenants will 
potentially have annual expenditures of nearly $15 million. While the majority of this 
spending will go towards housing, transportation, and healthcare, significant expenditures 
will occur in retain and service sectors that are present in Batavia. For example, building 
residents will likely spend over $750,000 eating at restaurants. A similar amount could be 
spent in entertainment venues.  

• Sales at potential commercial tenants of the building could be in the neighborhood of 
$2.7 million. This includes retail store sales of about $1.5 million and restaurant receipts 
of $1.2 million. Employees of these businesses may earn a total of nearly $870,000. 

 
9. Other 
Newman announced brush pick up dates:  

• East side: Already completed 
• West side: October 17th  
• November 28th is the citywide last brush collection  

 
10. Adjournment 
There being no other business to discuss, Brown asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting at 
9:05pm; Made by O’Brien; Seconded by Stark. Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Minutes respectfully submitted by Jennifer Austin-Smith 


	Members Absent: Alderman Wolff

